
PB Minutes     8/5/14                                                                                         Page 1 of 3            

Approved 9/2/14 

CITY OF ROCKLAND 
PLANNING BOARD 
Minutes of Meeting 

August 5, 2014 
 
 
 

Board Present:  Chairman E. Laustsen, W. Bodine, C. Jordan, A. Knickelbein, and P. vanVuuren                        
                             
Board Absent:  None 
 
Staff Present:  Code Enforcement Officer J. Root and Secretary D. Sealey        
                                                            
The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:18 P.M. and reviewed the agenda.  
 
Public Comment: Kyle Swan, 32 Cedar St., said he knew little about the proposed project for 16 
Brewster St. but the building had been for sale for many years. He was in full support of a gallery being 
opened at that location. 
 
Communications: Letter from Clare M. Zall regarding Peter Davis’ application for a Home Occupation at 
16 Brewster Street. 
 
Old Business: 
 
O’Hara Corp – 130 Tillson Avenue – Requested Revision to the Approved Site Plan to Rebuild the 
Fish Pier Plant – Tax Map #3-C-4: Steve Hart of O’Hara Corp. and architect John Hansen represented 
the applicant. Mr. Hansen stated that he sent a 7/23/14 letter regarding requested revisions. He had 
subsequently looked at the Findings from the 4/5/14 approval and discovered that he had referenced 
figures from Landmark Corp., which that company had later corrected. As a result, Mr. Hansen said, the 
fourth paragraph of his letter should be stricken. Furthermore, the last sentence should read, “The revised 
FAR is approximately 68.6%.” as was stated in Finding #8. 
 
Mr. Hansen said the only issue for this meeting was one of height. He had made changes from the 
original plan and noted that there has been no mention of height in the Findings. Modifications had now 
changed several building dimensions by a foot or two, resulting in a 519 sq. ft. increase in area. The roof 
pitch had been decreased from 4/12 to 3.5/12 to drop the ridge to 58’4”. The architect listed heights 
measured to the average elevation between the eaves of the building and the ridge, as defined in the 
code: 67% of the building measured 40’ 2-1/2” high, 17% measured 54’ 3-3/4” high, 12% measured 47’ 
high, and 4% measured 44’ 8” high. Without averaging, the building would be 58’ 4” high, still 
considerably below the permitted 65’ height limit. 
 
Chair Laustsen read aloud three additional proposed Findings. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Bodine made a motion to approve the additional Findings. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
ACTION: Ms. vanVuuren made a motion to approve the revised elevations. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
New Business: 
 
Peter Davis – 16 Brewster Street – Application for Home Occupation Level 3 for a Studio/Gallery 
Space – Tax Map #24-C-1: The applicant appeared before the PB. Mr. Davis said he had completed 
restoration of the old Salvation Army church and hoped to open a small gallery space for himself and 



PB Minutes     8/5/14                                                                                         Page 2 of 3            

possibly two other artists. CEO Root explained that an artist’s studio was a Level 2, but the addition of 
one employee moved it up to a Level 3.  
 
Chair Laustsen told Mr. Davis that anyone who went in with him would have to be an employee. He read 
aloud the definition of Home Occupation Level 3, which would be a conditional use. Asked about square 
feet, Mr. Davis said the usable space was 1,197 sq. ft. and he planned to partition the main room. Mr. 
Root said the applicant had 8 on-site parking spaces. 
 
Referring to the letter from Clare Zall, Ms. vanVuuren asked about the possibility of the city replacing the  
“No Parking” signs previously in place. The CEO suggested Mr. Davis erect such a sign on Brewster St. 
and the applicant agreed. Ms. vanVuuren asked about Ms. Zall’s request regarding sidewalks, crosswalk, 
etc. Chair Laustsen said this was a city question and Mr. Jordan said there was not much foot traffic in 
the area. Mr. Laustsen noted there were existing sidewalks and said he felt the proposal was a perfect 
use for the old church. 
 
Mr. Bodine asked if a letter such as Ms. Zall’s was ever sent on to Public Works. Chair Laustsen said it 
would be more appropriate for it to go to City Council and there was a brief discussion. 
 
The Chair read through the titles of the Elements and the PB concluded that screening might be needed 
on the Colson side of the parking lot.  
 
ACTION: Ms. Knickelbein made a motion to accept the application as complete. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
The board reviewed the Standards. Mr. Davis said he anticipated no more than 5 visitors per day. Chair 
Laustsen noted the Colson house was right on the line beside Mr. Davis’ proposed parking area. There 
were some 1-1/2’ tall cedars there and Mr. Laustsen wished to see more, saying that landscaping was a 
requirement for a Conditional Use. Mr. Davis said he would be happy to ask the Colsons if they would like 
increased screening. Mr. Jordan said this would be a less intensive use than the previous one and he 
saw no need for additional screening. There was a lengthy discussion on this issue and the PB agreed to 
let the CEO decide what, if anything, was needed. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Jordan made a motion to approve the Standards. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
Chair Laustsen read aloud the 24 proposed Findings of Fact. 
 
ACTION: Mr. Bodine made a motion to approve the Findings. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
ACTION: Ms. vanVuuren made a motion to approve the Home Occupation Level 3. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
Approve Minutes: 7/22/14 
 
ACTION: Mr. Jordan made a motion to approve the minutes of the 7/22/14 meeting. 
                Carried 5-0-0 
 
Adjournment:   Ms. Knickelbein made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 P.M. 
                          Carried 5-0-0  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 



PB Minutes     8/5/14                                                                                         Page 3 of 3            

Deborah Sealey 
Recording Secretary 


